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M atc heSfaS h i O n L i m i ted Company Registration No. 02717838 {Unitad Kingdom)
Group strategic report for the year ended 31 January 2023

The directors present the group strategic report tor the year ended 31 January 2023.

Review of the business

The principal activity of the group (Matchesfashion Limited and its subsidiaries) continued to be that of
luxury fashion retailing for men and women. Operating from the UK under the principal brand of
Matchesfashion, the group offers a modem edit of over 600 designers to customers in over 170 countries.

The expertly curated Matchesfashion edit remained a key focus during the year and continues to be our
point of difference. The business continued to offer a wide selection of established brands, new
designers, and exclusives, all picked to inspire customers to explore, experiment and express
themselves. The Matchesfashion business model continues to provide access to an extensive range of
products from established brands, while also offering inspiring exclusives. Furthermore, we remain
committed to supporting smaller brands and emerging designers by elevating their products to our active
consumer base.

There were no major changes to the core activities during the year under review, which enabled the
business to continue its strategy of delivering a unique and innovative shopping experience to customers.
The edit remains a key driver of our success, and the group'’s ability to adapt to changing customer
preferences while maintaining its focus on providing high-quality, carefully curated products has helped to
solidify its position as a leader in the luxury fashion industry.

As the luxury fashion industry continues to evolve, protecting brand value and expanding direct-to-
censumer offerings remain key priorities for luxury brands. In line with this trend, many luxury brands
have been reducing the number of wholesale channels to better manage their distribution. At
Matchesfashion, we understand the importance of maintaining these strong relationships with our key
parthers and are proud, in this context, to continue to have access to the most relevant and in-demand
products, thanks to our longstanding partnerships with leading luxury brands. By carefully curating our
product offering and maintaining strong relationships with cur partners, we can offer our customers a truly
uhique and inspiring shopping experience.

In the year ended 31 January 2022 (*FY217), we noted a change in our relationship with a leading apparel
group, which involved a transition to a concession model. Although this remained the only such
arrangement in place during the year ended 31 January 2023 ("FY22"), we may consider adopting similar
models in the future with other brands. Nevertheless, at Matchesfashicn, we believe that our ability to
curate the most appropriate selection of products for our customers is best served by operating on a
wholesale basis, which allows us to maintain responsibility for selection however we also recognise that
some brands may prefer a concession model that provides greater control over promotions and sell-
through rates whilst for Matchesfashion this means less inventory risk. A less promotional environment
and better full-price performance are beneficial for both brands and our business, driving commercial
activity that benefits for both sides.

In March 2022, following the conflict between Russia and Ukraine and international sanctions imposed in
relation to trading in the region, our trade into Russia was suspended. During the year FY22, revenues
from Russia on an order demand (being total value, including VAT, of customer orders placed before
cancellaticns and returns) basis decreased by 93% compared to FY21, impacting our overall demand by
3%. Qur view is that these sanctions will remain for the medium-term and we are not forecasting this
volume to return in the near-term.

The effects of the COVID-19 pandemic reduced during FY22 as the impacts gseen in previous years
unwound. Global supply chains continued to return to normal and the majority of social distancing
measures and curtailment of travel, seen during the height of the pandemic, were removed, with the
exception of China where a number of local lockdowns continued. Both physical retail and international
travel returned to more normal levels that were seen before the pandemic and the category demand
reverted to event and occasion dressing, as opposed to active and leisure wear seen during its height. In
the face of this changing shift in retail channel and headwinds from Russia, Matchesfashion continued to
deliver a strong increase in order demand from £677.1 million in FY21 to £758.2 million in FY22.
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Group strategic report for the year ended 31 January 2023 (continued)

Review of the business (continued)

The UK's departure from the Eurcpean Union at the start of 2021 continued to impact the business
operations during FY22. Approximately 70% of the goods sold by the business remain of EU origin, and
many of the non-EU origin goods are also shipped from Europe to cur distribution centre in the UK,
leading to financial impacts due to additional EU duty costs borne by the business to remain competitive
with EU-based multi-brand online retailers. Throughout the year, the group continued to mitigate the
additional duty burden through the utilization of EU approved reliefs. The intake centre in the Netherlands
continued to operate to support our inbound flows and the use of Returned Goods Relief (‘RGR”) was
used where possible on cutbound customer shipments. Despite these actions, customs inspections and
Brexit-related paperwork continues to place pressure on delivery times to customers. Overall, the cost for
FY22 of additional duties that were not incurred before Brexit, net of duty relief and other mitigations, and
the operational cost of running the dedicated intake centre was £8.5 million {year ended 31 January 2022:
£10.5 million).

Duties continue to be a significant cost for our business, in relation to both Brexit and the other countries
where our customers are based. We continue to review all areas of cost and seek to implement
measures to mitigate the impact of trade and customs regulations.

During August 2022 Paolo De Cesare left the business and Nick Beighton was appointed as CEQ. Sean
Glithero resigned as a director in April 2022 and David Murray joined the business as CFO in September
2022. Following Nick's appointment, a fuller review of the Executive leadership team resulted in several
additicnal changes across the business, bringing on board a number of individuals with significant e-
commerce and fashion experience. During the fourth quarter, and continuing further in 2023, the
organisation has continued to engage with employees and refocus around its core purpose, to inspire and
engage our customers at every moment of their fashion lives, and its mission, to build the go-to
destination for the ultimate modern luxury edit and experiences.

During the year, a parent company (MF Debtco Limited) secured cash financing via the issuance of new
loan notes to the group’s majority investor. The total of £80 million was raised in two separate tranches,
£40 million in April 2022 and £40 million in January 2023, which was cascaded through the group via
equity issuances, The amounts raised were used to fund operating cash outflows, service borrowings and
repay amounts drawn under the group's asset-backed lending facility. Alongside the financing activities in
January 2023, 3 fourth covenant waiver was obtained in respect of the quarter ended 31 January 2023,
prior to the financial covenant being reported and tested, and further waivers were also obtained in
respect of the prospective financial covenant testing for the quarters ending April, July and October 2023.
Post year end the wider group secured an additional £20 million of funding to support the business
through the issuance of further loan notes and at the same time further changes were made to the
group’s borrowings, details of which are included in the going concern paragraph in the directors’ report.

Results and performance

The group results for the year and the financial position at the end of the year are set out on pages 17-19.
The group’s revenue was £380.1 million (year ended 31 January 2022: £386.6 million), adjusted EBITDA
{earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, impairment and exceptional items) was a loss of
£33.7 million {year ended 31 January 2022: loss of £25.0 million) and the operating loss for the financial
year was £67.2 million (year ended 31 January 2021: £37.5 million}. Loss for the financial year was £70.9
million (year ended 31 January 2022; £39.8 million}). See the below section key performance indicators for
commentary on performance.
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Group strategic report for the year ended 31 January 2023 (continued)

Key performance indicators {KPIs)

Management drives business performance through the setting of clearly defined and measured key
performance indicators (KPls), taking appropriate action where required to enhance the financial results
of the business.

The key financial performance indicators that are used to monitor and manage the business are primarily:

EY22 EY21

Order demand (£ million) 758.2 8771 Total value, including VAT, of customer orders
placed before cancellations and returns

Year on year growth 12.0% 4.9%  Movement in order demand compared to prior
year

Revenue (£ million} 380.1 386.6

Year on year revenue growth (1.7%) (1.1%) Movement in revenue compared to prior year

Gross profit margin (restated™*) 33.5% 327% Gross profit on revenue

Adjusted EBITDA* loss (restated™) (33.7) (25.0) Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation,

(E millicn) amortisation, impairment and exceptional items

Sell-through: % of stock purchased for the season sold by the
end of the financial year

Spring Summer Season 95% 96%

Autumn Winter Season 85% 83%

Finished goods for resale (£ million) 898 817

The movement in revenue year on year is impacted by the move to concessions with a key group of brands
towards the end of FY21. As commission is now recognised in place of the sale to the end customer, this
reduces revenue but also reduces costs (as there is no purchase cost of the related stock). Order demand
includes the total value of the customer orders and is therefcre the comparable metric year on year.

The directors acknowledge that the adjusted EBITDA performance for the year is below expectations and
does not represent a sustainable performance, The directors are implementing a number of widescale
changes in 2023, which are mentioned within the future outlook section later in this report.

*Adjusted EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, impairment and excepticnal
items) is calculated as follows:

Restated™*

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

January 2023 January 2022

£000 £000

Operating loss (67,212) (37,474)
Exceptional items 24,758 1,263
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,157 5,857
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 5,483 4,993
Amortisation of intangible assets 160 337
Adjusted EBITDA (33,654) (25,024)

**The comparative figures have been restated, see note 27 for further details.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal risks are reviewed regularly by the board and the executive management team. Updates in
terms of emerging risks or significant actions undertaken are addressed as and when required at board
meetings.
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Group strategic report for the year ended 31 January 2023 (continued)

Principal nsks and uncertainties (continued)

Global economy

The global economic factors are weighing heavily on a number of businesses at the moment. This includes
the global impact of rising interest rates, increasing commodity prices, shipping costs, fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates, general infiation, and higher labour costs. These factors have the potential to affect not
only our operations but also the overall market sentiment towards purchasing products. This could either
lead to an increase in our cost of sales, distribution costs, and administrative expenses. The group is
closely monitoring these economic indicators, factoring them into its projections and is taking necessary
steps to mitigate their impact. Although the impact on consumer behavicur remains uncertain, we remain
committed to providing our customers with high-quality products and exceptional service despite these
challenging circumstances.

Global pandemics

The COVID-19 pandemic presented a significant business risk, but this is no longer deemed a significant
business risk; however the group does now have the relevant experience and strategy to respond to this
risk in order to protect the health and safety of colleagues and customers and to ensure the business was
able to continue to operate throughout the crisis.

Brexit

The consequences of Brexit have increased both the logistical complexity the business faces, as well
impacting operating margins, but new working practices have been implemented and measures continue to
be taken to mitigate the costs and reduce the level of duty and taxes payable.

Liquidity and cashflow risk

The group faces liquidity risk from uncertainties in cash inflows and outflows. To minimise this risk the
group maintains detailed long and short-term cashflow forecasts. Management review these on a
frequent basis to enhsure the group and company can meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
Management also have a number of cash management levers available should they be required. Given
the asset-based lending bank loan facility, the group has sufficient resources to meet its business plan
and even in severe but plausible downside scenarios does not require external finance to maintain
liquidity. Further details of the group’s liquidity assessment are included in the going concern disclosure in
the directors’ report,

Currency risk

The group’s cashflows are subject to variations in currency valuations across the world. Management
reduces this risk by monitoring exchange rates and balancing the group’s exposure to these currencies.
Where possible cashflows are self-hedged by matching income currencies with expense currencies. In
some cases, this is made possible by the local supply chain the group has established. So far, the group
has not made use of financial currency hedging instruments but may do so when needed. Further details
on the group's currency exposure are given in note 21.

Technology risk

The group is dependent on its websites to generate the majority of sales. The group continuously
monitors website performance and makes developments to ensure it is up to date. The group regularly
reviews the threat of cyber-attacks to its technology and implements various strategies to minimise risks.

Social unrest and economic uncertainty caused by Russia’s invasion of Ukraine.

At the time of writing, Russia’s invasion of Ukraine is continuing and may have potential impacts on global
supply chains and has already led to increasing global inflation and specifically an increase in raw
material costs. The group has not included any order demand from Russia or Ukraine in its forward-
looking forecasts. This is deemed to be the most significant risk causec by Russia's invasion of Ukraine
and the economic uncertainty.
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Group strategic report for the year ended 31 January 2023 (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

Price risk

The principal area of price risk for the group is stock purchase fluctuations, impacted by both supply and
demand fluctuations and currency movements. The group has implemented a number of cost efficiency
measures and agrees medium-term price contracts with key suppliers for months at a time to reduce the
short-term impact of market price movements.

Business continuity risk
Continuity of supply is key to business continuity, minimising turnover potential and maintaining customer
service. The Group has diversified supply chains and maintains adequate stock cover to ensure continuity
of supply going forward.

S$172(1) reporting

The directors consider, both individually and together, that they have acted in the way they consider, in
good faith, to promote the success of the group while considering the interests of key stakeholders.
Matchesfashion recognises the importance of maintaining positive relationships with its investors,
employees, customers, suppliers, lenders, and the government.

Customers ‘

Matchesfashion places great emphasis on providing an exceptional customer experience. The group
strives to understand its customers' needs and preferences, and tailors its offerings accordingly. The
group actively seeks customer feedback and uses this to continuously improve its offerings and services.
Our customer base is global and diverse and the group seeks out customer feedback through a
combination of face-to-face interactions at one of the many events we run, including at our Carlos Place
townhouse, as well as online surveys and more detailed pieces of customer research commissioned from
independent third parties. The group endeavours to maintain a reputation for high standards for example
by ensuring all products are checked by the warehouse on receipt and onward despatch; having service
level agreements in place with distributors and tracking delivery times against these; and processing
prompt refunds on returns from customers.

Suppliers

Matchesfashion recognises that its suppliers are critical to its success and is committed to building strong
and sustainable relationships with them. Matchesfashion engages with its suppliers to identify
apportunities for collaboration and improvement. in particular, the fashion brands whose products we
retail, are critical to the long-term success of the business and we work with them on responsible retailing
as well as sharing data and insight on emerging themes in the industry and consumer demand.
Ultimately, we strive for multi-season relationships and recognise the need to be flexible in routes to
market and as customer needs change.

Lenders

Matchesfashion recognises the importance of maintaining strong relationships with its lenders, particularly
in times of financial difficulty. The group acknowledges that it is currently experiencing financial
challenges and is not meeting its debt covenants. The group has proactively engaged with its lenders to
provide updates on its performance. The group’s lenders are informed on both financial and strategic
progress with monthly reporting packs and meet with management regularly.

Matchesfashion recognises the importance of maintaining open and transparent communication with its
lenders to build trust and confidence in its ability to address its financial situation. The group is committed
to providing regular updates to its lenders and to working collaboratively to find a mutually beneficial
solution. Matchesfashion believes that maintaining positive relationships with its lenders is critical to its
long-term financial stability and success and is fully committed to doing so.

Govemnment
Matchesfashion recognises the importance of complying with all relevant laws and regulations and works
closely with governments to ensure that it meets its obligations. The group is committed to maintaining
positive relationships with government agencies and officials, and actively engages with them to
understand their expectations and requirements. Matchesfashion also seeks to contribute positively to the
communities in which it operates, by supporting local initiatives and causes.

5
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Group strategic report for the year ended 31 January 2023 (continued)

$172(1) reporting (continued)

In conclusion, Matchesfashion recognises that maintaining positive relationships with its key stakeholders
is critical to its long-term success. The group is committed to promoting the interests of its stakeholders
while also delivering value to its shareholders.

Board decisions
Matchesfashion made several important decisions during the year to position the group for future growth
and success.

Change in the Warehouse Management System

One of the key decisions taken during the year was to upgrade the group's warehouse management
system. This decision was made to improve efficiency and accuracy in order fulfiiment and to better meet
customer expectations for fast and reliable delivery. The new system has been successfully implemented
and has resulted in significant improvements in warehouse productivity and customer satisfaction.

Changes to the Executive Team
Matchesfashion also made changes to its Executive Team during the year. This decision was made to

bring in fresh perspectives and expertise to support the group's growth and transformation agenda. The
new Executive Team members have extensive experience in the retail and e-commerce industries and
are already making valuable contributions to the group.

Change in Strategy to Focus on Reducing Cost and Complexity
A key focus during the year was to reduce cost and complexity across the business. This decision was

made to improve profitability and to ensure that the group remains competitive in a rapidly changing retail
landscape. Matchesfashion has undertaken a comprehensive review of its operations and is
implementing a range of measures to reduce costs, streamline processes, and increase efficiency.

Decision o Reduce the Amount of Remote Working

Matchesfashion made the decision to reduce the amount of remote working in order to improve
collaboration and communication among employees. This decision was made after considering the
impact of remote working on employee productivity and wellbeing. The group still operates a hybrid
working model that allows employees to work from home on certain days, while also requiring them to
come into the office on @ more regular basis for meetings and collabaration sessions.

Funding Requirements
Matchesfashion worked with its investors during the year to assess funding requirements. As a result of

this, £80 million of ican notes were issued by the group to the majority investors. In addition, the board
reviewed the current financing arrangements and renegotiated terms with [enders both in the year and
post year end (see note 26 for further details).

In conclusion, Matchesfashion has made several important decisions during the year to improve
efficiency, reduce costs, and position the group for future growth and success. These decisions have
been taken after careful consideration of the interests of all stakeholders and are aimed at delivering long-
term value for shareholders while also promoting the interests of employees, customers, suppliers, and
the wider community.

Future outlook

Looking ahead, Matchesfashion has developed a three-year strategy to build the go-to destination for the
ultimate modern |luxury edit and experiences. This hinges on inspiring and engaging customers at every
moment of their fashion lives, offering the right product through the right channel, whether that's rental, re-
sale or pre-order.

We aim to broaden our business models to attract the luxury customer at an earlier stage of life, whilst
nurturing cur highly valued top-tier through exclusive product, private shopping and events. This
transformation will be facilitated by significant work across buying, digital marketing, and operations,
under-pinned by a detailed cross-functional change plan.
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Group strategic report for the year ended 31 January 2023 (continued)

Future outlook {continued)

Matchesfashion will continue to provide the truly personalised and intimate luxury shopping experience it
is known for, comprised of a curated edit and exceptional service, for both digital and physical customers.
By doing this, Matchesfashion aims to grow revenue and increase the proportion of its sales that are
made at full price or with limited promaoticn to improve margins further.

The new Executive team is focussed on the business transformation required to create a stable base for
the business to grow and recognise that this requires a turnaround of the business. This will look to right
size the business and drive a sustainable, profitable business with a greater focus, for the benefit of all
stakeholders. Across the group's supplier base there is a focus on ensuring the right mix of fashion
brands that customers want to shop. The digital marketing strategy will become more focused on
delivering customers that have a greater customer life time value, leading to a reduction in the absolute
amount of digital marketing activity. The organisational design is also being reviewed to ensure the right
structure is in place to operate in this new environment.

The group aims to further leverage data and technology to improve its offering and to create a seamless
and integrated customer journey across all touchpoints. In addition, Matchesfashion will continue to use
its physical presence to create immersive and experiential spaces that reflect the brand's values and
ethos, for the benefit of both our brand partners and customers.

Matchesfashion recognises the challenges facing the retail industry, including evolving customer
expectations, increased competition, and changing market dynamics. The group is committed to staying
ahead of these trends and to adapting its business model to ensure long-term success. Matchesfashion
will continue to invest in innovation and technology, and to explore new business models and
partnerships that can drive growth and create value for all stakeholders.

Finally, Matchesfashion is committed to the sustainability agenda and will take a responsible appreach to
its business operations. The group will work to reduce its environmental impact and to promote diversity
and inclusion throughout its organisation. Matchesfashion believes that its commitment to sustainability is
not only the right thing to do, but also a key driver of long-term value creation for all stakeholders.

Post year-end, in June 2023, the wider group received additional funding of £20 million from its majority
invesiors and entered into a revised Senior Facilities Agreement and Senior Notes Indenture, both of
which had the result of providing additional liquidity to the group (see note 26 for further details). These
changes will positivity support the future growth of the business.

In conclusion, Matchesfashion is aware of both the challenges and opportunities facing the retail industry
in the coming years. The group remains committed to its strategic priorities and will continue to invest in
enhancing the customer experience, improving its product offering, increasing operational efficiency, and
driving sustainability. Matchesfashion believes that its focus on delivering a truly personalised and
intimate luxury shopping experience will enable it to differentiate itself from its competitors and to drive
growth and create value for all stakeholders.

For further information with respect to the adoption of the going concern basis and future covenant
reparting, please refer to the directors’ report.

This group strategic report has been approved by the board.

On behalf of the board of directors

D Murray, Director
23 August 2023
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Directors’ report for the year ended 31 January 2023

The directors present the group directors’ report and the audited financial statements of the company
and the group for the year ended 31 January 2023, These financial statements represent the year
from 1 February 2022 to 31 January 2023.

Going concern

The directors have reviewed the group’s and company's cash requirements, taking in a range of possible
scenarios for the going concern period up to 31 August 2024, being 12 months from the date of signing of
these financial statements. They have a reasonabie expectation that the group and company have
adequate resources to continue in operational existence and to meet their liabilities as and when they fall
due however the base case which has been modelled as part of the work performed does result in iimited
headroom at certain points during the year and accordingly the directors have concluded there is a
material uncertainty over going concern, Additionally, the group’s asset-based lending bank loan facility
will expire on 31 August 2024, and it is modelled to be needed to support the group’s working capital past
this date. Although management has a track record of successfully renegotiating the facility on previous
renewal dates, the renegotiation or refinancing of this facility has not yet started at this time which gives
rise to an additional material uncertainty over going concern.

Management’s going concern assessment has been performed using a thorough scenario planning
exercise of cash flow requirements, drawing on board-approved budgets and forecasts, in conjunction
with available financing which runs for a period up to 31 August 2024. The exercise considered a
modelled base case and a severe but plausible downside (‘downside’) case for the period from 1
February 2023 to 31 August 2024 using actual results to 31 July 2023 and management forecasts
thereafter. The base case uses the FY23 board-approved budget as the starting point and applies a
reduction in revenue and associated costs as well as taking the most recent trading performance into
consideration. It also models the impact of a management efficiency plan, with a reduction of the cost
base and cash spend outside of that directly associated with the reduction in revenue including capex,
stock purchases and marketing spend. The downside case takes a further reduction to revenue
compared to the base case, and adjusts for the related impact on variable costs, which would represent
the lowest revenue performance by the business in the last six years. The downside case includes further
mitigating actions wholly within the control of management and receipts from duty drawback claims
submitted and received post year end to a value of $15.2 millien (£11.9 million, see note 27 for further
details),

For the period to 31 August 2024 the group is forecast to have adequate liquidity in both the base case
and the downside case, albeit with significantly reduced headroom at the start of each seascn when sales
receipts are lower and payments for stock are higher. In line with the market, the group has experienced
adverse trading in the post year end pericd to date as compared to the aforementioned base case model
and further sensitivities as a result of market trading conditions could erode the remaining headroom
under both models. Importantly this would only occur at the liquidity low point at the beginning of each
season and is before any additional cash management actions that could be taken, such as adjusting the
timing of payments.

The directors also note there is a significant material event falling at the end of the period that they are
formally required to assess for the purposes of going concern, this event being the expiry of the group’s
asset-based lending bank loan facility on 31 August 2024. Given the material nature of this event, the
directors have considered it appropriate to reference in this report. At the time of signing these financial
statements, the intention is that, as agreed with the group’s majority investors, this arrangement will be
refinanced in 2024 allowing the group to fulfil its obligations as they fall due as the forecast cash flows of
the group show that a facility will be required post 31 August 2024. Given the length of time that now
exists until the expiry of the facility, refinancing has not yet commenced. In the absence of management
being able to secure a facility by 31 August 2024, the directors will need to find alternative sources of
funding.
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Directors’ report for the year ended 31 January 2023 (continued)

Going concern (continued}

The directors are cognisant of the track record of the business performance, including the need for
investor support, and that the newly established management team, as at the date of sighing these
financial statements, has not yet had an opportunity to fully demonstrate the results from the
transformation plan for the business. The limited headroom, at points in the season, noted on the
modelled base case, combined with adverse trading post year end and the required refinancing of the
asset-based lending facility in August 2024, have led the directors to conclude that there is a material
uncertainty over going concern in relation to liquidity.

The company is a guarantor of borrowings that its immediate parent, MF Bidco Limited, has entered into
under a Senior Facilities Agreement and Senior Notes Indenture (together “the Borrowings”). Under the
terms of the Borrawings, MF Bidco Limited and the guarantars, (tagether the “borrowing group”) is
required to comply with a financial covenant that specifies that the Senior Secured First Lien Leverage
Ratio shall not exceed 7.50:1 where the ratio is defined as the ratio of Consolidated Net Indebtedness to
Consolidated “Adjusted” EBITDA (“the Covenant”). The Covenant is tested quarterly on a trailing twelve-
month period basis.

On 13 June 2023 the terms of the Borrowings were amended as follows:

e The maturity of the Barrowings was extended from 14 October 2024 to 13 April 2026,

e The cash interest due on 31 October 2023 and 30 April 2024 have the option {at the election of
the group) to be converted to PIK interest;

® For the remaining bi-annual interest periods after 30 April 2024, the group has option to convert
50% of the cash interest to PiK interest;

e Where the group elects to convert cash interest to PIK interest, the applicable interest rate on the
Borrowings will increase by either 0.5% (if 50% or less of the cash interest is converted) or 1% (if
more than 50% of cash interest is converted) per annum. This additional interest is also permitted
to be treated as PIK at the option of the group; and

s The Covenant was removed from all quarters remaining under the term of the Borrowings
(starting from the Covenant to be tested as at 31 January 2023).

At the same time as the above amendments, the group issued loan notes to its investors totalling £20
million, for cash consideration. The group's investors have shown considerable support for the business
with the group issuing £57.6 million of loan notes for cash consideration in the year ended 31 January
2022 and a further £80 million issued for cash consideration in the year ended 31 January 2023. The
cash implications arising from these changes in June 2023 have been factored into both the base case
and downside case prepared by management.

Prior to the further covenant waivers obtained in June 2023, the group had obtained a waiver for the
guarters ending 31 January 2023, 30 April 2023, 31 July 2023 and 31 October 2023 in January 2023. The
Covenant waiver was obtained prior to the year end for 31 January 2023 and therefore the Borrowings
have been presented as non-current for this financial year. A similar Covenant waiver was cbtained for
each of the previous three financial years. However in the previous financial year the waiver was obtained
after the year end and therefore the Borrowings were presented within current liabilities as at 31 January
2022.

In conclusion, while the directors remain positive on the future direction of the transformation plan, they
do also note that there is limited headroom in the base case and downside scenarios, trading continues to
be uncertain in a difficult market and historically there has been a need for investor support to fund
working capital. In addition, the group’s asset-based lending facility expires on 31 August 2024 and at the
time of signing these financial statements, the outcome of the refinancing of this facility cannot be known.
Accordingly, the directors have concluded that there is a material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt over the group's and the company's ability to continue as a going concern. These financial
statements do not include any adjustments that would arise if the group and the company were unable to
continue as a going concern.



Matc h eSfaS h i On L i m i ted Company Regisiration No. 02717838 (Linited Kingdom}

Directors’ report for the year ended 31 January 2023 (continued)

Dividends
No dividends were proposed or paid during the year (year ended 31 January 2022: £Nil).

Donations
The group has made charitable donations of £166,000 during the year (year ended 31 January 2022:
£77,000). There were no politica! donations made in either year.

Directors
The directors of the company who were in office during the year and up to the date of signing the
financial statements, uniess otherwise noted were:

P De Cesare (resigned 4 August 2022)
S Glithero (resigned 28 April 2022)

H Ainley (resigned 23 September 2022)
N Beighton {(appointed 4 August 2022)
D Murray (appointed 6 September 2022)

Qualifying third-party indemnity provision
Qualifying third-party indemnity provisions, as defined by the Companies Act 2008, were in force for the
benefit of the directors throughout the year and up to the date of the approval of the financial statements.

Research and development

The group is constantly undertaking development and improvement of its website. During the year the
group incurred £2 .9 million (year ending 31 January 2022: £3.0 million) of website related research and
development casts which have been expensed. The directors believe that this expenditure will lead to
future profits for the group.

Disabled employees

The group gives full consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons where the
requirements of the job can be adequately fulfilled by a handicapped or disabled person. Where existing
employees become disabled, it is the group’s policy wherever practicable to provide continuing
employment under nermal terms and conditions and to provide training and career development and
promotion to disabled employees whenever appropriate.

Employee involvement

During the year, the policy of providing employees with information about the group has been continued
through internal media in which employees have also been encouraged to present their suggestions and
views on the group's performance. Regular meetings are held between local management and
employees to allow a free flow of information and ideas.

The group systematically provides empioyees with information on matters of concern to them, consulting
them or their representatives regularly, so that their views can be taken into account when making
decisions that are likely to affect their interests. Employee involvement in the group is encouraged, as
achieving a common awareness on the part of all employees of the financial and economic factors
affecting the group plays a major role in maintaining its growth.

Financial risk management policy
See note 21 for details of the group's assessment of financial risk and management policies.
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MatChESfaS h ion Lim ited Company Registration No. 02717838 {United Kingdem)
Directors’ report for the year ended 31 January 2023 (continued)

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

The group has a distribution centre in the UK, in addition to a head office, studio and three retail locations.
The company uses third party carriers for the delivery of the majority of both inbound and outbound
goods.

The group and company’s emissions and energy use in the UK and offshore area are shown below.

EY22 FY21
Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (in kWh) 3,849,089 3,190,945
Emissions from combustion of gas (in tonnes of carbon 312 214
dioxide equivalent tCO2e)
Emissions from purchased electricity (in tonnes of carbon 447 454
dioxide equivalent tCO2e)
Total gross tCO2e 759 668
Revenue (£ million) 380.1 386.6
Intensity metric (tCO2e / £100,000 revenue) 0.20 017

The data above has been calculated using electricity and gas meter readings taken monthly excluding
electricity used from renewable sources. The conversicn into tCO2e uses the current published kWh
gross calorific value and kgCQ2e relevant for the financial year.

Directors’ duties
The directors of a company must act in the way they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to
promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing so have
regard (amongst other matters) to:

= the likely consequences of any decision in the long term,

¢ the interests of the company's employees,

* the need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others,

» the impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment,

* the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct, and
the need to act fairly as between members of the company.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law
the directors have prepared the group financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards and the company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101
“Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law).

Under company law, directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and company and of the profit or loss of
the group for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:
+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
« state whether applicable UK-adopted international accounting standards have been followed for
the group financial statements and United Kingdem Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101
have been followed for the company financial statements, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the group and company will continue in business.
11



Docu3ign Envelope ID: 2232CF06-6DF8-48C9-A742-A44C4DBC0863

Matc heSfaS h i 0 n Lim ited Company Registration No. 02717838 (United Kingdom)
Directors’ report for the year ended 31 January 2023 (continued)

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements {continued)
The directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are also responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show
and explain the group’s and company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the group and company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006.

Directors’ confirmations
In the case of each directer in office at the date the directors’ report is approved:
e so far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the group's and
company’s auditors are unaware; and
= they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the group’s and
company's auditors are aware of that information.

On behalf of the board of directors

DT IR

D Murray, Director
23 August 2023
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Matc hesfashion Limited Company Registratior: No, 02717838 {United Kingdom)

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Matchesfashion
Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion:

» Matchesfashion Limited's group financial statements and company financial statements (the "financial
statements”) give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company's affairs as at
31 January 2023 and of the group’s loss and the group’s cash flows for the year then ended;

= the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2006;

« the company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101
“Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

= the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2008.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: the
Consclidated and Company Statements of Financial Position as at 31 January 2023; the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive income, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity,
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial
statements, which include a description of the significant acccunting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

In forming our opinion on the financial statements, which is not modified, we have considered the
adequacy of the disclosure made in note 1(b) to the financial statements conceming the group's and the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Both management's base case and severe but plausible downside case modelled as part of their
assessment over going concern demenstrate minimal headroom that could be eroded if adverse trading
conditions continue. Additionally, the repayment of the Asset-Based lending facility cn 31 August 2024 is
within the going concern period and a refinancing or renewal of this facility is not certain. Accordingly,
there is a material uncertainty over going concern.

Management’s basis of preparation in note 1(b) to the financial statements sets out the key assumptions
in respect of both the base case and severe but plausible downside forecasts. In respect of both the base
case and severe but plausible downside case, the models forecast sufficient liquidity for the group to
meet its liabilities as they fall due, however, they are sensitive to adverse impact on revenue, specifically
in relation to reduction in sales, volatility within sales volumes or an inability to carry out some of the
transformation and cost reduction plans, modelled within each case, Additionally, recent trading has
highlighted the uncertainty of the market. In neither the base case or downside forecast is there sufficient
liquidity at 31 August 2024 to repay the asset-based lending facility and it is anticipated that this will need
to be renewed or refinanced in the normal course of business.

13



Matc heSfaS h iO n L i m i ted Company Registration No. 02717838 (United Kingdom)

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Matchesfashion
Limited (continued)

Material uncertainty related to going concern {continued)

We recognise that management has a track record of successfully renegotiating the facility on previous
renewal dates and that a sufficient time period remains in order for a renewal to be implemented.
However, at time of signing these financial statements the refinancing or renewal cannot be certain.

These conditions, along with the other matters explained in note 1(b) to the tinancial statements, indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the group’s and the
company's ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements do not include the adjustments
that would result if the group and the company were unable to continue as a going concern.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in
the relevant sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Qur
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of
assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform
procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect 1o the Strategic report and Directors' report, we alsc considered whether the disclosures
required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2008 requires us also to
report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the
Strategic report and Directors' report for the year ended 31 January 2023 is consistent with the financial
statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and
Directors' report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with the applicable framewocrk and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are
also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether cue to fraud or error.

14



Matc h eSfaS h iO n Lim ited Company Registration No. 02717838 (United Kingdom)

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Matchesfashion
Limited (continued)

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements (continued)

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
cencern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
group or the company or to cease operations, cr have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 2 guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-
compliance with [aws and regulations related to employment law and data privacy legislation, and we
considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements.
We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial statements such
as UK company tax legisiation in various jurisdictions and the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated
management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements
(including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to
management estimates, the posting of inappropriate journals to manipulate revenue and adjusted
EBITDA and the misappropriation of cash. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team
included:

+ Discussions with management, including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations and fraud.

e Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their significant accounting
estimates, including in respect of the impairment review of intangible assets and investments and and
in respect of provisions, such as inventory, returns and credit note provisions
Identifying and testing journal entries to address the risk of inappropriate journals referred to above.

« |ncorporating an element of unpredictability into our testing.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become
aware of instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and
transactions reflected in the financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement
due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2008 and for no other purpose. We do not,
in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior
consent in writing.
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Matchesfash io n Limited Company Registration No. 02717838 {United Kingdom)

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Matchesfashion
Limited (continued)

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

= we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

» the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

{1 N

Mark Jordan (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

24 August 2023
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M atc h eSfaS h iO n Li m ited Company Registration No. 02717838 (United Kingdom)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 January 2023

Restated*

Year ended Year ended

31 January 2023 31 January 2022

Note £000 £000

Revenue 2 380,093 386,584
Cost of sales {252,692) (260,098)
Gross profit 127,401 126,486
Distribution costs (84,907) (79,610)
Administrative expenses {86,528) (85,327)
Impairment of financial assets {24,376) -
Other operating income 1,198 977
Operating loss 3 {67,212) (37,474)
Finance costs 7 (3,425) {2,532)
Loss before income tax {70,637) (40,006)
Income tax {charge)/credit 8 (213) 234
Loss for the financial year (70,850) (39,772}
Other comprehensive result - -
Total comprehensive loss for the financial year {70,850) {(39,772)

All of the activities of the group relate to continuing operations.
The notes on pages 23 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements,

*The comparative figures have been restated, see note 27 for further details.

17



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2232CF06-6DF8-48C8-A742-A44C4DBC0863

Matc h eSfaS h io n L i m itEd Company Registration No. 02717838 (United Kingdom)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as
at 31 January 2023

Restated* Restated*
31 January 31 January 1 February
2023 2022 2021
Note £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 9 5,106 7,679 12,963
Right-of-use asset 10 15,559 15,967 20,871
Intangible assets 11 55 212 528
Trade and other receivables - - 750
20,720 23,858 35,112
Current assets
Inventories 14 93,040 81,708 77,875
Trade and other receivables 12 31,669 41,712 30,973
Current tax assets 1,173 698 378
Cash and cash equivalents 15 23,139 5,748 6,564
149,021 129,866 115,791
Total assets 169,741 153,724 150,903
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 {B4,182) (75,660) {84,933)
Current tax liabilities - - -
Lease liabilities 10 (6,819) (4,405) (5,982)
(91,001) (80,065) {90,915)
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 10 (12,916) {16,752) (21,105)
Provisions 18 (3,329) (3,562) (3,366)
(16,245) (20,314) (24,471)
Total liabilities (107,246) {100,379) (115,386)
Net assets 62,495 53,345 35,517
Equity
Called up share capital 19 69 69 69
Share premium account 197,240 117,240 59,640
Accumulated losses {134,814) (63.964) (24,192)
Total equity 62,495 53,345 35517

*The comparative figures have been restated, see note 27 for further details.
The notes on pages 23 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 17 to 52 were approved by the board on 23 August 2023 and signed
on its behalf by

D Murray
Director
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 2232CF06-6DF8-48C9-A742-A44C4DBCO8E3

M atC h ESfaS h i 0 n Lim i ted GCompany Registration No. 02717838 {United Kingdom)

Company Statement of Financial Position as
at 31 January 2023

Restated* Restated*
31 January 31 January 1 February
2022 2021
Note £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 9 5,094 7,651 12,916
Right-of-use asset 10 15,559 15,867 20,871
Intangible assets 11 55 212 528
Trade and other receivables 12 - - 750
Investments 13 - 23 23
20,708 23,853 35,088
Current assets
Inventories 14 90,537 81,216 77,876
Trade and other receivables 12 30,406 41,036 29,121
Current tax assets 1,148 601 217
Cash and cash equivalents 15 22,759 5,348 6,235
144,850 128,199 113,449
Total assets 165,558 152,052 148,537
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 {82,992) (76,856) (84,803)
Lease liabilities 10 (6,819) (4,405) {5,982)
(89,811) (81,261) (90,785)
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 10 (12,916) (16,752) (21,105)
Provisions 18 (3,329) (3,562) (3,366)
(16,245) (20,314) (24,471)
Total liabilities {106,056) (101,575) (115,256)
Net assets 59,502 50,477 33,281
Equity
Called up share capital 19 69 69 69
Share premium account 197,240 117,240 58,640
Accumulated losses (137,807) {66,832) (26,428)
Total equity 59,502 50,477 33,281

*The comparative figures have been restated, see note 27 for further details.

The notes on pages 23 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The parent company has taken advantage of the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act
2006 not to present its profit and loss account. The loss for the parent company for the year was £71.0
million (year ended 31 January 2022: £40.4 million).

The financial statements on pages 17 to 52 were approved by the board on 23 August 2023 and
signed an its behalf by

D Murray
Director
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MatCh ESfaS h i 0 n L i m i ted Company Registration No. 02717838 (United Kingdom)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for
the year ended 31 January 2023

Called up share Share premium  Accumulated

capital account losses Total equity
£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance as at
1 February 2021 69 59,640 (24,192) 35,517
(restated*)
Loss for the financial year
(restated") - - (39,772) (39,772)
Total comprehensive loss - - (39,772) (39,772)
Shares issued in the year - 57,600 - 57,600
Total transactions with
owners, recognised directly - 57,600 - 57,600
in equity
Balance as at
31 January 2022 69 117,240 (63,964) 53,345
(restated*}
Balance as at
1 February 2022 69 117,240 (63,964) 53,345
{restated”)
Loss for the financial year - - {70,850} (70,850)
Total comprehensive loss - - {70,850} (70,850)
Shares issued in the year - 80,000 - 80,000
Total transactions with
owners, recognised directly - 80,000 - 80,000
in equity
Balance as at 89 197,240 (134,814) 62,495

31 January 2023

*The comparative figures have been restated, see note 27 for further details.

The notes on pages 23 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Matchesfashion Limited

Company Registration Ne. 82717838 (United Kingdom)

Company Statement of Changes in Equity for

the year ended 31 January 2023

Balance as at
1 February 2021
(restated*)

Loss for the financial year
{restated™)
Total comprehensive loss

Shares issued in the year
Total transactions with

owners, recognised directly

in equity

Balance as at
31 January 2022
({restated*)

Balance as at
1 February 2022
(restated*)

Loss for the financial year
Total comprehensive loss

Shares issued in the year
Total transactions with

owners, recognised directly

in equity

Balance as at
31 January 2023

Called up share Share premium

Accumulated

capital account losses Total equity
£000 £000 £000 £000
69 59,640 (26,428) 33,281

- - (40,404) (40,404)

- - (40,404) {40,404)

~ 57,600 - 57,600

- 57,600 - 57,600

69 117,240 (66,832) 50,477
69 117,240 {66,832) 850,477

- - (70,975) {70,975)

- - (70,975) (70,975)

- 80,000 - 80,000

- 80,000 - 80,000

69 197,240 {137,807) 59,502

*The comparative figures have been restated, see note 27 for further details.

The notes on pages 23 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Matchesfashion Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash flows for

the year ended 31 January 2023

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash outflow from operating activities
Income tax paid

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of tangible assets

Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid

Principal element of lease payments

Issue of equity share capital

Net asset-based lending facility payments
Net cash inflow from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents during the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the

year
Exchange gains/{loss&s) on cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Nnte

28

15

Company Registration No. 02717838 (United Kingdom)

Restated*

Year ended Year ended
31 January 31 January
2023 2022

£0O01 £000
(49,050) (18,860)
{140) (85)
(49,190) (18,945)
(727) (573)

(3) 21)

(730) (594)
(3,222) (2,314)
(6,373) (5,929)
80,000 57,600
{3,262) (30,568)
67,143 18,789
17,223 (750)
5,748 6,564

168 (66)

23,139 5,748

*The comparative figures have been restated, see note 27 for further details.

The notes on pages 23 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The parent company has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS101 to not present its statement of

cash flows.

22



Matc hESfaS h i 0 n Li m it&d Company Registration No. 02717838 (United Kingdam)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended
31 January 2023

1. Accounting policies

General information

Matchesfashion Limited is a private limited company limited by shares and registered in England and
Wales. The company is domiciled and incorporated in the United Kingdom. The address of its registered
office is Level 7, The Shard, 32 London Bridge Street, London SE1 9SG. The principal activity and the
nature of the group’s operations is set out in the strategic report.

New standards and interpretations

During the year ended 31 January 2023, an amendment to IFRS 8, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
‘Interest rate benchmark reform — Phase 2’ became mandatory. The group has considered the
amendments and has concluded that they are either not relevant to the group or they do not have a
significant impact on the group's consolidated financial statements.

Certain new accounting standards, amendments to accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31 January 2023 reporting periods and have not been early adopted
by the group. These standards, amendments or interpretations, which include: IFRS 17 ‘Insurance
Contracts’; Amendments to |IAS 16 ‘Proceeds befare intended use’; Amendments to 1AS 37 ‘Onerous
contracts — costs of fulfilling a contract; and Narrow scope amendments to IAS 1 and [AS 8, are not
expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods on foreseeable
future transactions.

Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with applicable accounting standards requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are
disclosed in note 1(w).

a) Basis of preparation

The company financial statements of Matchesfashion Limited have been prepared in accordance with
Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework' and the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International
Accounting Standards and with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to the group
reporting under those standards as at 31 January 2023,

These financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis, under the histerical cost convention.

b) Going concern

The directors have reviewed the group’s and company's cash requirements, taking in a range of possible
scenarios for the going concern period up to 31 August 2024, being 12 months from the date of signing of
these financial statements. They have a reasonable expectation that the group and company have
adequate resources to continue in operational existence and to meet their liabilities as and when they fall
due however the base case which has been modelled as part of the work performed does result in limited
headroom at certain points during the year and accordingly the directors have concluded there is a
material uncertainty over going concern. Additionally, the group’s asset-based lending bank loan facility
will expire on 31 August 2024, and it is modelled to be needed to support the group’s working capital past
this date. Although management has a track record of successfully renegotiating the facility on previous
renewal dates, the renegotiation or refinancing of this facility has not yet started at this time which gives
rise to an additional material uncertainty over going concern.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

b) Going concern (continued)

Management's going concern assessment has been performed using a thorough scenario planning
exercise of cash flow requirements, drawing on board-approved budgets and forecasts, in conjunction
with available financing which runs for a period up to 31 August 2024. The exercise considered a
modelled base case and a severe but plausible downside (‘downside’) case for the period from 1
February 2023 to 31 August 2024 using actual results to 31 July 2023 and management forecasts
thereafier. The base case uses the FY23 board-approved budget as the starting point and applies a
reduction in revenue and associated costs as well as taking the most recent trading performance into
consideration. It also models the impact of a management efficiency plan, with a reduction of the cost
base and cash spend outside of that directly associated with the reduction in revenue including capex,
stock purchases and marketing spend. The downside case takes a further reduction to revenue
compared to the base case, and adjusts for the related impact on variable costs, which would represent
the lowest revenue performance by the business in the last six years. The downside case includes further
mitigating actions wholly within the control of management and receipts from duty drawback claims
submitted and received post year end to a value of $15.2 million (£11.9 million, see note 27 for further
details).

For the period to 31 August 2024 the group is forecast to have adequate liquidity in both the base case
and the downside case, albeit with significantly reduced headroom at the start of each season when sales
receipts are lower and payments for stock are higher. In line with the market, the group has experienced
adverse trading in the post year end period to date as compared to the aforementioned base case model
and further sensitivities as a result of market trading conditions could erode the rermaining headroom
under both models. Importantly this would only occur at the liquidity low point at the beginning of each
season and is before any additional cash management actions that could be taken, such as adjusting the
timing of payments.

The directors also note there is a significant material event falling at the end of the period that they are
formally required to assess for the purposes of going concern, this event being the expiry of the group's
asset-based lending bank lcan facility on 31 August 2024. Given the material nature of this event, the
directors have considered it appropriate to reference in this report. At the time of signing these financial
statements, the intention is that, as agreed with the group's majority investers, this arrangement will be
refinanced in 2024 allowing the group to fuffil its obligations as they fall due as the forecast cash flows of
the group show that a facility will be required post 31 August 2024. Given the length of time that now
exists until the expiry of the facility, refinancing has not yet commenced. In the absence of management
being able to secure a facility by 31 August 2024, the directors will need to find alternative sources of
funding.

The directors are cognisant of the track record of the business performance, including the need for
investor support, and that the newly established management team, as at the date of signing these
financial statements, has not yet had an opportunity to fully demonstrate the results from the
transformation plan for the business. The limited headroom, at points in the season, noted on the
modelled base case, combined with adverse trading post year end and the required refinancing of the
asset-based lending facility in August 2024, have led the directors to conclude that there is a material
uncertainty over going congcern in relation to liquidity.

The company is a guarantor of borrowings that its immediate parent, MF Bidco Limited, has entered into
under a Senior Facilities Agreement and Senior Notes Indenture {together “the Borrowings™). Under the
terms of the Borrowings, MF Bidco Limited and the guarantors, (together the "borrowing group”) is
required to comply with a financial covenant that specifies that the Senior Secured First Lien Leverage
Ratio shall not exceed 7.50:1 where the ratio is defined as the ratio of Consolidated Net Indebtedness to
Consolidated "Adjusted” EBITDA (“the Covenant”). The Covenant is tested quarterly on a trailing twelve-
month period basis.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

b) Going concern {continued)
On 13 June 2023 the terms of the Borrowings were amended as follows:

» The maturity of the Borrowings was extended from 14 October 2024 to 13 April 2026,

e The cash interest due on 31 October 2023 and 30 April 2024 have the option (at the election of
the group) to be converted to PIK interest;

e For the remaining bi-annual interest periods after 30 April 2024, the group has option to convert
50% of the cash interest to PIK interest;

o Where the group elects tc convert cash interest to PIK interest, the applicable interest rate on the
Borrowings will increase by either 0.5% (if 50% or less of the cash interest is converted) or 1% (if
more than 50% of cash interest is converted) per annum. This additional interest is also permitted
to be treated as PIK at the option of the group; and

e The Covenant was removed from all quarters remaining under the term of the Borrowings
{starting from the Covenant to be tested as at 31 January 2023).

At the same time as the above amendments, the group issued loan notes to its investors totalling £20
million, for cash consideration. The group’s investors have shown considerable support for the business
with the group issuing £57.6 million of loan notes for cash consideration in the year ended 31 January
2022 and a further £80 million issued for cash consideration in the year ended 31 January 2023, The
cash implications arising from these changes in June 2023 have been factored into both the base case
and downside case prepared by management.

Prior to the further covenant waivers obtained in June 2023, the group had cbtained a waiver for the
quarters ending 31 January 2023, 30 April 2023, 31 July 2023 and 31 October 2023 in January 2023. The
Covenant waiver was obtained prior to the year end for 31 January 2023 and therefore the Borrowings
have been presented as non-current for this financial year. A similar Covenant waiver was obtained for
each of the previous three financial years. However in the previous financial year the waiver was obtained
after the year end and therefore the Borrowings were presented within current liabilities as at 31 January
2022.

In conclusion, while the directors remain positive on the future direction of the transformation plan, they
do also note that there is limited headroom in the base case and downside scenarios, trading continues to
be uncertain in a difficult market and historically there has been a need for investor support to fund
working capital. In addition, the group’s asset-based lending facility expires on 31 August 2024 and af the
time of signing these financial statements, the outcome of the refinancing of this facility cannot be known.
Accordingly, the directors have concluded that there is a material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt over the group's and the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. These financial
statements do not include any adjustments that would arise if the group and the company were unable to
continue as a going concern.

c) Exemptions for qualifying entities under FRS 101
The company has taken advantage of the following exemptions in its individual financial statements:

¢ A statement of cash flows for the period (IAS 1.10(d), 111).

* A statement of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding period when an entity
applies an accounting policy retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement (IAS 1.10(f},
38A-38D,40A-40D).

» Comparative period information in respect of the following {IAS 1.38):

» Areconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the period (IAS
1.79(a)(iv));

= A reconciliation of carrying amount of PPE at the beginning and end of the period (IAS
16.73(e));

+ A reconciliation of carrying amount of intangible assets at the beginning and end of the period
(IAS 38.118(e));
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1. Accounting policies (continued)
c) Exemptions for qualifying entities under FRS 101
= |nformation relating to the entity's objectives, policies and processes for managing capital (IAS
1.134-138).

* Information relating to new IFRS standards which have been issued but which are not yet
effective, including an assessment of the possible impact that it will have when it is adopted for
the first time (IAS 8.30-31).

+ Disclosure of key management personnel remuneration (IAS 24.17).
Disclosure of related party transactions entered between two or more members of a group,
provided that any subsidiary which is a party to the transaction is wholly owned by such a
member.

s All the disclosure requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (IFRS 7 - all
disclosures).

d) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial position include the
financial statements of the group and its subsidiaries undertakings made up to 31 January 2023. Inter-
company transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated fully on consolidation,

e) Foreign currency
i} Functional and presentation currency
The group's presentation currency is the pound sterling.

i) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions.

At each year end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Non-monetary
items measured at histerical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction
and non-manetary items measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate when fair value
was determined.

f) Revenue recognition

i. Retail store activities

The group operates retail shops for the sale of a range of branded and own branded products. Sales of
goods are recognised on sale to the customer, which is considered the point of delivery. Retall sales are
usually by cash, credit or payment card.

ii. Online activities

The group sells goods via its websites for delivery to the customer or ‘click and collect’ at its retail shops.
Revenue is recognised when the group has fulfilled its performance obligations in relation to the
transaction. For deliveries to the customer this is the point of acceptance of the goods by the customer
and for ‘click and collect’ this is the time of collection. Transactions are settled by credit or payment card.

For the sales of goods via retail and intermet channels, excluding those made on a concession basis,
revenue is recognised at the amount payable by the customer, net of returns (both completed returns and
expected retums), discounts and rebates allowed by the group and value added taxes. Sales made to
customers through these channels represent a single performance obligation.

i#i. Brand income

The group receives payment from brands for prominently displaying and featuring brands’ products in the
editorial content carried on its website.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

f) Revenue recognition (continued)

iv. Returns liability

A returns liability (included in trade and other payables) and a right to the returned goods (included in
other current assets) are recognised for the products expected to be returned. Accumulated experience is
used to estimate such returns at the time of sale at a portfolio level (expected value method). The returns
liability represents the value expected to be refunded to customers for tems sold as at the balance sheet
date, in line with the group’s returns policy. The right to the returned goods represents the cost of these
goods that would be recognised back in stock on return.

v. Concession commission

Where the group acts as the agent in a transaction with the customer, revenue is recognised as the
commission receivable by the group on the sale. Revenue is recognised at the point of sale as this is
when the group becomes entitled to the commission.

g) Employee benefits
The group provides a range of benefits to employees, including paid holiday arrangements and defined
contribution pension plans.

i)} Short term benefits
Short term benefits including holiday pay and other similar non-monetary benefits, are recognised as an
expense in the year in which the service is received.

if} Defined contribution pension plans

The group operates a defined contribution plan for its employees. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. Once the contributions have been
paid the group has no further payment obligations. The contributions are recognised as an expense when
they are due. Amounts not paid are shown in accruals in the statement of financial position. The assets of
the plan are held separately from the group in independently administered funds.

h) Insurance income

Insurance income is included within other operating income. Where insurance income is linked to a claim
that the group has the right to make, the income is recognised when it is entitled to make the claim and it
is probable that the claim will result in an inflow of economic benefit to the group.

i) Exceptional items

The group categorises any infrequent or unusual significant items of income and expense as exceptional
items. The directors believe that this provides a more helpful analysis as it highlights one-off items. Such
iterms may include significant restructuring costs, profits or losses on disposal or termination of operations,
litigation costs and settlements and profit or loss on disposal of investment.

I Other operating income

Other operating income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the
relevant agreement. Other operating income includes insurance income, R&D credits and advertising
income.

k) Finance costs

Costs associated with raising loan finance and equity shares are recorded against the loan principal and
share premium account respectively. Loan finance costs are amortised to the statement of comprehensive
income aver the life of the relevant loan at a constant rate of return on the carrying amount.
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31 January 2023 (continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1) Current and deferred income tax

Taxation expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax recognised in the reporting period. Tax
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Current or deferred faxation assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

i) Current tax

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year or prior years.
Tax is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the year end.

Management periodicaily evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

ii) Deferred taxation

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

mj) investments in subsidiaries
Investments are held as non-current assets at cost less any provision for impairment. Where the
recoverable amount of the investment is less than the carrying amount, impairment is recognised.

n} Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, or valuation and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes the original purchase price, costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, dismantling and restoration costs and
borrowing costs capitalised. Land and buildings include freehold and leasehold factories, retail outlets and
offices.

Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset over its expected useful life,
as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over term of respective lease

Furniture and fittings Over term of respective lease (long life} or 5 years straight line
Office equipment 5 years straight line

Computer equipment 4 years straight line

Assets under construction are stated at cost and are not depreciated. Repairs, maintenance and minor
inspection costs are expensed as incurred.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. The effect of any change is accounted for prospectively.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

n) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected. On disposal, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is
recognised in statement of comprehensive income.

o) Intangible assets

Patents and trademarks

The cost of patents and trademarks are capitalised as they have been purchased separately from a
business. They are amortised over ten years which is the economic benefits of the legal rights.

Amortisaticn is charged to administrative expenses in the statement of comprehensive income.

Development costs
Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of certain major new product
projects are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the product projects so that it will be available for use;
management intends to complete the product projects and use or sell it;

there is an ability to use or sell the product projects;

it can be demonstrated how the product projects will generate probable future economic benefits;
adeguate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the product projects are available; and

= the expenditure attributable to the product projects during its development can be reliably
measured.

Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
year.

p) Leases

The group leases various offices, warehouses, retail stores and equipment. Property contracts are
typically made for fixed periods between 5 and 20 years and equipment contracts are typically between 2
and 5 years.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The group has elected not to separate
lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable,

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment
with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the group where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received and makes adjustments specific to the lease, for example term,
country, currency and security.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

p) Leases (continued)

The group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments
based cn an index cr rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-
use asset.

Where an existing lease is renewed, consideration is given to whether this constitutes a new lease ora
modification of an existing lease. A range of factors are considered such as whether there was a right to
renew the lease in the original contract, whether the initial lease ran to termination and the underlying
asset to which the original and renewed lease relates to.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the
income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability; any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received; any initial direct costs; and restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term
on a straight-line basis. If the group is reascnably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised in the same way as outlined above; the
group has not taken the election to recognised these on a straight-line basis as an expense in the income
statement.

q) Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date non-financial assets not carried at fair value are assessed to determine whether
there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. If there is such an indication the recoverable
amount of the asset is compared to the carrying amount of the asset.

The recoverable amount of the asset is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Value in use is defined as the present value of the future cash flows before interest obtainable as a result
of the asset’'s continued use. These cash flows are discounted using a post-tax discount rate that
represents the current market risk-free rate and the risks inherent in the asset.

If the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to be lower than the carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income, unless the asset has been revalued when the amount is recognised in the other
comprehensive income to the extent of any previously recognised revaluation. Thereafter any excess is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

If an impairment loss is subsequently reserved, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the revised carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income.

r) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less cost to complete and seli.
Inventories are recognised as an expense in the year in which the related revenue is recognised.
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1. Accounting policies {(continued)

r) Inventories (continued)

Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Cost includes the purchase price, including
taxes and duties and transport and handling directly attributable to bringing the inventory to its present
location and condition. Inventories consist of raw materials relating to our own label Raey and finished
goods relating to other brands. Provision is made for slow moving and defective inventories.

At the end of each reporting year inventories are assessed for impairment. If an item of inventory is
impaired, the identified inventory is reduced to its selling price less costs to complete and sell and an
impairment charge is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Where a reversal of the
impairment is recognised the impairment charge is reversed, up to the criginal impairment loss, and is
recognised as a credit in the statement of comprehensive income.

s) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eqguivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities. Cash at bank and in hand includes cash
received from credit card companies within four working days of the financial year end.

t) Dividends

Equity dividends are recognised when they become legally payable. Interim equity dividends are
recognised when paid. Final equity dividends are recognised when approved by the shareholders at an
annual general meeting.

u) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i} Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions held by the group relate to dilapidation costs of leased properties. The estimated cost of
ditapidations is recognised in leasehold improvements and provisicns when the obligation arises and the
liability can be reliably estimated. Under the lease agreement, the lessee is obliged to remove assets that
it has installed in the leased property. The asset is depreciated in line with the lease term.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

{ii) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingent liabilities arise as a result of past events when (i) it is
not probable that there will be an outflow of resources or that the amount cannot be reliably measured at
the reporting date or (ii) when the existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
uncertain future events not wholly within the group’s control. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the
financial statements unless the probability of an outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognised. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

v) Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the group has become party to the contractual obligations
of the instrument and derecognised when they are discharged or when the contractual terms expire.

i) Financial assets

Financial assets comprise cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivahles (including
intercompany receivables in the company only financial statements). The group classifies all of its financial
assets as assels at amortised cost as they are held within the objective to collect contractual cash flows and
these cash flows represent ‘solely payments of principal and interest’ (the ‘SSPYI criterion) as defined within
IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
that are directly attributable to their acquisition or issue and are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method, less any provision for impairment.

Impairment provisions are recognised using an expected credit loss approach. The expected credit loss is the
difference between the cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the group considers historical loss rates for each category of customers and
adjusts for forward-looking macroeconomic data. The group uses the simplified expected credit loss model
{the lifetime expected loss allowance) for receivables that do not have a significant financing component. Any
short term frade receivables are assumed to not have a significant financing component. Due to the nature of
the business being primarily cash based, the group does not hold significant trade and other receivables. The
receivables held relate mainly to amounts due from the group’s suppliers and rental deposits held by
landlords. As such, it is considered that any loss allowance in relation to these receivables is immaterial.

#) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables and lease liabilities. See note 1(q) for the
accounting policy relating to lease liabilities. The group classifies all of it financial liabilities as liabilities at
amortised cost, they are initially recognised at fair value net of any transaction costs directly attributable to the
issue of the instrument,

iii} Offselting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented in the financial statements when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or to realise the asset and setfle the liability simultaneously.

w) Critical accounting judgements and key source of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, revenue and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are reascnable under the circumstances.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any
future periods affected.

Significant estimate: net realisable value of inventory

The group manufactures and sells luxury goods and is subject to changing consumer demands and fashion
trends. The recoverability of the cost of inventories is assessed every reporting period, by considering the
expected net realisable value of inventory compared to its carmying value. Where the net realisable value is
lower than the carrying value, a provision is recorded. When calculating inventory provisions, management
considers the nature and condition of the inventory, as well as applying assumptions in respect of
anticipated saleability of finished goods and future usage of raw materials. Refer to note 14 for further
details of the carrying value of inventory.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

w) Critical accounting judgements and key source of estimation uncertainty {continued)
Significant judgement: recoverability of intercompany receivables

Intercompany receivables are tested for impairment in line with the company's accounting policy on financial
assets. Where receivables are not considered to be recoverable based on the liquid assets of a
counterparty, alternative recovery scenarios are assessed.

Significant judgement: sales returns and sales cut-off adjustments

In order to correctly recognise online and store revenue in line with the group’s accounting policy, there are
two judgemental adjustments that are made. Underlying revenue is recognised by the group's systems once
goods have been packed for delivery to customers. However, in line with the group's accounting policy,
revenue should only be recognised once goods have been delivered to the customer. Therefore, in the case
of online revenue, an adjustment is made to adjust revenue for goods that have been packed but not
delivered. This is calculated by looking at the average number of days it takes for delivery in different
regions and applying this to the sales packed in the year, that would therefore not expected to be delivered
as at the year end date. In order to calculate the sales returns adjustment, actual return rates in the month
before year end are used and applied to sales packed that are eligible to be retumed as at the year end
date.

2. Revenue
The group's store activities relate solely to the retailing of fashion geeds in the United Kingdom. The

group’s online activities relate to the retailing of fashion goods in the United Kingdom and the rest of
world.

Analysis of revenue by classes of business - Group

Year ended Year ended

31 January 2023 31 January 2022

£000 % £000 %

Retaitl stores activities 9,234 2 7,389 2

Online activities 349,307 92 371,925 96

Concession commission 18,682 5 4,358 1

Brand income 2,870 1 2912 1

Total revenue 380,093 100 386,584 100
Analysis of revenue by geographical market - Group

Year ended Year ended

31 January 2023 31 January 2022

£000 % £000 %

United Kingdom 97,279 26 86,134 23

United States of America 77,622 20 70,759 18

Australia 23,044 6 22,631 s}

Far East 76,739 20 94,963 25

Europe 60,774 16 71,361 18

Middle East 27,501 7 23,633 6

Rest of World 17,134 5 17,203 4

Total revenue 380,093 100 386,584 100

The above geographical analysis classifies revenue using the market to which the product is delivered to
the end customer,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended

31 January 2023 (continued)

3. Operating loss
Operating loss is stated after charging/(crediting):

Giruup

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {note 9)
Depreciation of right-of-use asset (note 10)
Amortisation of intangible assets {included within
administrative expenses) (note 11)

Impairment of financial assets

Research and development

Foreigh exchange losses

Salaries and wages (note 6)

Auditors’ remuneration — audit services

Auditors’ remuneration - audit-related assurance
services
Other operating income*

Company Registration Ne. 02717838 {United Kingdom}

Year ended
31 January
2023
£000
3,157
5,483

160
24,376
2,856
2,176
55,982
353

18
(1,198)

Year ended
31 January
2022
£000
5,857
4,993

337
2,970
189
53,292
214

16
(977)

* Other operating income includes advertising income, insurance claims settled and R&D credits.

4. Exceptional items — Group

The main components of the exceptional charge are as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 January 31 January

2023 2022

£000 £000

New and vacant properties costs 382 -
One-off salary related costs - 1,263
Impairment of financial assets 24,376 -
24,758 1,263

Properties costs in the year ended 31 January 2023 relate to the disposal of a property previously held.
Impairment of financial assets relates to the write down of intercompany receivables not considered
recoverable. The costs in the prior year relate to one-off employee settlement costs. These are considered
infrequent in nature and therefore in line with the group’s accounting policy are classified as exceptional.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended
31 January 2023 (continued)

5. Directors’ emoluments - Group

Year ended Year ended
31 January 31 January
2023 2022
£000 £000
The directors’ emoluments for the group were as follows:
Aggregate emoluments - 246
Company contributions to defined contripution pension
schemes - 10

For the year ended 31 January 2023 there were no directors (year ended 31 January 2022: one director)
receiving emoluments and therefore the emoluments shown above are also those for the highest paid
director.

Directors’ emoluments for the other directors have been borme by other companies under common group
ownership. These directors are also directors or officers of at least one other company within the group.
These directors’ services to the company do not occupy a significant proportion of their time. As such, these
directors do not consider that they have received any remuneration for their ingidental services to the
company for the pericds covered by these financial statements.

Key management compensation

Key management includes members of senior management. The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is shown below:;

Year ended Year ended

31 January 31 January

2023 2022

£000 £000
Aggregate emoluments 2,066 1,992
Pension contributions 28 27
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended

31 January 2023 (continued)

6. Employee information - Group

Company Registration No. 02717838 {United Kingdom)

The monthly average numhber of persons {including directors) employed by the group during the year was:

Year ended Year ended
31 January 31 January
2023 2022
By activity: Number Number
Production 24 28
Selling and distribution 48 54
Administraticn 606 644
Total 678 724

The aggregate payroll cost incurred in respect of these employees was:
Group Year ended Year ended
31 January 31 January
2023 2022
£000 £000
Wages and salaries 50,118 47,934
Social security costs 4,514 4,029
Other pension costs 1,350 1,329
55,982 53,292

7. Finance costs - Group

Year ended Year ended
31 January 31 January
2023 2022
£000 £000
Interest payable on overdrafts 1,825 830
Unwind of discount on dilapidation provision 203 218
Interest payable on lease liabilities 1,397 1,484
Finance costs 3,425 2,532
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Company Registration No. 02717838 (United Kingdorm)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended
31 January 2023 (continued)

8. Income tax charge/(credit) — Group

(a) Tax charge/(credit) included in statement of comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended
31 January 31 January
2023 2022
£000 £000
Current tax
Cverseas corporation tax on loss for the year 213 149
Adjustments in respect of prior year - {383)
Total current tax 213 (234)
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences - -
Adjustments in respect of prior year - -
Total deferred tax - -
Tax charge/(credit) on loss 213 (234)

{b) Reconciliation of tax charge/(credit)

Tax assessed for the year is higher (year ended 31 January 2022: higher) than the standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK for the year ended 31 January 2023 of 18% (year ended 31 January 2022:
19%). The differences are explained below:

Restated*

Year ended Year ended

31 January 31 January

2023 2022

£000 £000

L oss before taxation {70,637) (40,0086)

;rga,t;n ioss before taxaticn at 19% (year ended 31 January 2022: (13,421) (7,601)

Effects of:

Effect of different tax rate of overseas jurisdiction 3 14
Expenses not deductible/(income not taxable) for tax purposes 4,703 (39}
Group relief (15) -
Adjustments to tax in respect of previous periods - (383)
Movement in deferred tax not recognised 8,943 7,775
Tax charge/(credit) for the year 213 (234)

(c) Tax rate changes

On 3 March 2021 the Government confirmed that the rate of corporation tax will increase to 25% from 1
April 2023. This new law was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021. in the Autumn statement in
November 2022, the government confirmed that the increase in the corporation tax rate to 25% from 1
April 2023 will go ahead. Deferred taxes at the statement of financial position date have been measured
using this enacted tax rate and reflected in these financial statements.
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Company Registration No. 02717838 (United Kingdom)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended
31 January 2023 (continued)

9. Property, plant and equipment

Group

Cost

At 1 February 2021
Additions
Disposals

At 31 January 2022

Accumulated
depreciation

At 1 February 2021
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 January 2022

Net book amount at 31

January 2022
Net book amount at
31 January 2021

Cost

At 1 February 2022
Additions

Disposals

At 31 January 2023

Accumulated
depreciation

At 1 February 2022
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 January 2023

Net book amount at
31 January 2023
Net book amount at
31 January 2022

L.easehold

Furniture

Office

Computer

Improvements  and Fittings Equipment Equipment Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

15,663 7,190 1,154 10,034 34,041

- 8 12 553 573

{67) - - (585) (652)

15,596 7,198 1,166 10,002 33,962

8,549 4,710 970 6,849 21,078

2,760 1,275 119 1,703 5,857

(67) - - (585) (652)

11,242 5,985 1,089 7,967 26,283

4,354 1,213 77 2,035 7.679

7,114 2,480 184 3,185 12,963

Leasehold Furniture Office Computer Total
improvements and Fittings Equipment Equipment

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

15,596 7,198 1,166 10,002 33,962

- 152 38 537 727

(357) - - - {357)

15,239 7,350 1,204 10,539 34,332

11,242 5,985 1,089 7,967 26,283

924 965 55 1,213 3,157

(214) - - - (214)

11,952 6,950 1,144 9,180 29,226

3,287 400 60 1,359 5,106

4,354 1,213 77 2,035 7,679

Property, plant and equipment relates to assets held in relation to the group's retail stores, plus corporate

assets held.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended
31 January 2023 (continued)

9. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Company

Cost

At 1 February 2021
Additions
Disposals

At 31 January 2022

Accumulated
depreciation

At 1 February 2021
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 January 2022

Net book amount at 31

January 2022
Net book amount at
31 January 2021

Cost

At 1 February 2022
Additions

Disposals

At 31 January 2023

Accumulated
depreciation

At 1 February 2022
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 January 2023

Net book amount at
31 January 2023
Net book amount at
31 January 2022

Property, plant and equipment relates to assets held in relation to the company’s retail stores, plus

corporate assets held.

Leasehold Furniture and Office Computer Totaf
Improvements Fittings Equipment Equipment a

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

15,663 7,189 1,154 9,909 33915

- 8 12 547 567

(87) - - (585) (652)

15,596 7,197 1,166 9,871 33,830

8,549 4,710 g70 6,770 20,999

2,760 1,275 119 1,678 5,832

(67) - - (585) (652)

11,242 5,985 1,089 7,863 26,179
4,354 1,212 77 2,008 7,651

7,114 2,479 184 3,139 12,916

Leasehold Furniture Office Computer Total

Improvements  and Fittings Equipment Equipment

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

15,596 7,197 1,166 9,871 33,830

- 152 38 537 727

(357) - - - (357)

15,239 7,349 1,204 10,408 34,200

11,242 5,985 1,089 7,863 26,179

924 965 55 1,187 3,141

(214) - - - (214)

11,952 6,950 1,144 9,060 29,106

3,287 399 60 1,348 5,094

4,354 1,212 77 2,008 7,651
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended
31 January 2023 (continued)

10. Leases

Group and Company

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases:

31 January 31 January
2023 2022
£000 £000

Right-of-use assets
Buildings 15,531 15,859
Equipment 28 108
15,559 15,867

Lease liabilities

Current 6,819 4. 405
Non-current 12,916 16,752
19,735 21,157

There were additions of £6.2 million (year ended 31 January 2022: £Nit} to right-of-use assets in the year.

The statement of comprehensive income shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Year ended Year ended
31 January 31 January
2023 2022
£000 £000

Depreciation charge
Buildings 5,403 4,863
Equipment 80 130
5,483 4,993
Interest expense {included in finance costs) 1,397 1,484

The statement of comprehensive income does not include any charges relating to short-term leases, low-
value assets or variable lease payments that are not included in the lease liability.

The total cash outflow for leases in the year ended 31 January 2023 was £7.8 million (year ended 31
January 2022: £7.4 million).
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended

31 January 2023 (continued)

11. Intangible assets

Group

Cost

At 1 February 2021
Additions

At 31 January 2022

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 February 2021
Charge for the year
At 31 January 2022

Net book amount
at 31 January 2022
Net book amount at
31 January 2021

Cost

At 1 February 2022
Additions

At 31 January 2023

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 February 2022

Charge for the year

At 31 January 2023

Net book amount
at 31 January 2023
Net baok amount at
31 January 2022

Comparty Registration No. 02717838 (United Kingdom)

Patents and

Technology Trademarks Total
£000 £000 £000

1,714 461 2,175

- 21 21

1,714 482 2,196

1,189 458 1,647

332 5 337

1,521 463 1,984

193 19 212

525 3 528
Technology .?:;::tnﬁ:ri: Total
£000 £000 £000

1,714 482 2,196

- 3 3

1,714 485 2,199

1,521 463 1,984

153 7 160

1,674 470 2,144

40 15 55

193 19 212
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31 January 2023 (continued)

11. Intangible assets (continued)

Company

Cost

At 1 February 2021
Additions

At 31 January 2022

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 February 2021
Charge for the year
At 31 January 2022

Net book amount at
31 January 2022
Net book amount at
31 January 2021

Cost

At 1 February 2022
Additions

At 31 January 2023

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 February 2022

Charge for the year

At 31 January 2023

Net book amount at
31 January 2023
Net book amount at
31 January 2022

Company Registration No. 02717238 (United Kingdom)

. Patents and
Website Trademarks Total
£000 £000 £000
1,714 451 2175
_ 21 21
1,714 482 2,196
1,189 458 1,647
332 5 337
1,521 463 1,984
193 19 212
525 3 528

. Patents and
Website Trademarks Total
£000 £000 £000
1,714 482 2,196
- 3 3
1,714 485 2,199
1,521 463 1,984
153 7 160
1,674 470 2,144
40 15 55
193 19 212
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31 January 2023 (continued)

12. Trade and other receivables

Company Registration No. 02717838 (United Kingdom)

Group B Group] Company Company

31 January 3%# 31 January 31 January

2023 2022 2023 2022

£000 £000 £000 £000

Trade receivables 11,457 13,240 11,457 13,240
Taxation and soctial security 5,816 3,325 4,602 2,704
Other receivables 11,331 7.004 11,307 6,979
Intercompany receivables 42 15,663 42 15,663
Prepayments and accrued income 3,023 2,480 2,998 2,450
31,669 41,712 30,406 41,036

Intercompany receivables

Amounts due from other group companies are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.

13. Investments in subsidiaries

Company

Balance as at 1 February and 31 January

The company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 25.
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MatCheSfas h ion Lim ited Company Registration No. 02717838 (United Kingdom)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended
31 January 2023 (continued)

14. inventories

Restated” Restated*

Group Group Company Company

31 January 31 January 31 January 31 January

2023 2022 2023 2022

£000 £000 £000 £000

Raw materials 2,382 2,955 2,383 2,955
Finished goods and goods for resale 90,658 78,753 88,154 78,261
93,040 81,708 90,537 81,216

*The comparative figures have been restated, see note 27 for further details.

An inventory provision of £7.7 million (31 January 2022: £8.8 million) has been recorded, representing 8%
(31 January 2022: 10%) of the gross value of inventory. The provision reflects management's best
estimate of the net realisable value of inventory, where this is considered to be lower than the cost of the
inventory. The key inputs into the provision calculation are sell-through of stock (% of stock purchased for
the season sold by the end of the financial year), selling price of aged/faulty stock and the pointin a
season at which stock starts to be provided for. A reasonably possible change in these assumptions
could lead to an increase in the total provision by £4.9 million or a decrease of £2.2 million.

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in cost of sales amounted to £201.3
million (year ended 31 January 2022: £210.4 million}. Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value
during the year amounted to a net reversal of £1.1 million {year ended 31 January 2022: reversal of £4.2
million). These were recognised as an expense reduction and were included in ‘cost of sales’ in the
statement of profit or loss.

15. Cash and cash equivalents

Group Group Company Company

31 January 31 January 31 January 31 January

2023 2022 2023 2022

£000 £000 £000 £000

Cash at bank and in hand 2,810 5,748 2,430 5,346
Amount available under asset-based

lending facility (note 16) 20,329 - 20,329 -

23,139 5,748 22,759 5,346

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash received from credit card companies of £1.7 million (31 January
2022; £2.8 million) within four working days of the financial year end.
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31 January 2023 (continued)

16. Trade and other payables

Group Group Company Company

31 January 31 January 31 January 31 January

2023 2022 2023 2022

£000 £000 £000 £000

Trade payabies 43,801 35107 36,782 32,660

Taxation and social security 2,287 3,992 2,436 3,869

Other payables 16,337 12,832 16,342 12,830

Intercompany balance 102 - 5,933 3,935
Amount drawn under asset-based

lending facility ) 3,262 ) 3.262

Accruals 21,655 20,467 21,499 20,300

84,182 75,660 82,992 76,856

Asset-based lending

The asset-based lending facility is secured primarily on the group’s inventories. The amount that can be
drawn at a given point in time fluctuates as it is determined predominantly by reference to the level of
inventories held, but also includes adjustment for outstanding balances to key suppliers and slow-moving
stock. In the year ended 31 January 2023 interest was payable at a rate of between 2.5% and 3.0%
above SONIA, varying based on the percentage drawn as compared to the maximum facility of £50
million. In January 2023 the facility was extended to the earlier of 31 August 2024 or the relocation of the
group’s main distribution centre outside of England and Wales. In connection with this extension the
interest rate payable increased to a rate of between 3.0% and 3.5% above SONIA (Sterling Overnight
Index Average). The facility carries a requirement to maintain excess availability of £5 million at all times.
All receivables receipts are used to repay the drawn facility which meant that as at 31 January 2023, the
facility was in a net receivable position, due to the £40 million shareholder injection being received shortly
befare the year end and swept against the facility. The balance on the facility has therefore been
classified as cash and cash equivalents (see note 15) as at 31 January 2023 as the cash held in the
facility is readily available.

Returns liability

Where a customer has a right to return a product within a given period, the group recognises a returns
liability within other payables for the amount of consideration received for which the group expects to
return to the customer (£7.3 million; 31 January 2022: £7.1 million). The group also recognises a right to
the returned goods, within other receivables, measured by reference to the fermer carrying amount of the
goods (£5.1 million; 31 January 2022: £4.7 million).

Intercompany payables
Amounts due to other group companies are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended
31 January 2023 (continued)

17. Deferred tax

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is considered more likely than not. The group has
not recognised deferred tax assets relating to gross timing differences of £129.3 million at 31 January
2023 (31 January 2022: £80.4 million) in respect of losses that can be carried forward against future
taxable income for the period between one-year and an indefinite period of time.

18. Provisions

Group and company 31 January 31 January
2023 2022
£000 £000

At the beginning of the year 3,562 3,366

Release during the year : (436) (22)

Release of discount 203 218

At the end of the year 3,329 3,562

Provisions relate to dilapidation provisions held in respect of leasehold properties and are expected to be
settled between one and six years after the statement of financial position date.

19. Called up share capital

Group and company

31 January 31 January 31 January 31 January

2023 2023 2022 2022

Issued and fully paid Number £000 Number £000
Ordinary shares of £0.01 each 6,929,275 69 6,929,075 68

During the year, on 1 June 2022, the company issued 100 ordinary shares for total consideration of £40
million. On 18 January 2023, the company issued a further 100 ordinary shares for £40 million.
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31 January 2023 (continued)
20. Financial instruments

Financial instruments are held at amortised cost. The following table sets out the financial assets and
liabilities included in the statement of financial position:

Group Group Company Company
31 January 31 January 31 January 31 January
2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financiai assets

Trade and other receivables 17,736 31,253 17,715 31,229
Cash and cash equivalents 23,139 5,748 22,759 5,346
40,875 37,001 40,474 36,575

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 85,412 75,422 84,074 76,741
Lease liabilities 19,735 21,157 19,735 21,157
105,147 96,579 103,809 97,898

21. Financial risk management

Group

The main risks associated with the group’s financial assets and liabilities are set out below. The group's
financial risks have been identified as liquidity risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk.

(2) Liquidity risk

The group finances its operations through a combination of debt and equity. The group manages its
liquidity requirements by monitoring the headroom on its existing facilities compared toc short term and
longer-term cash forecasts. Cash forecasts are reviewed on a regular basis and updated for the latest
view of cash inflows and outflows. The asset-based lending facility (as described in note 18) is the key
facility that the group has available. The group aims to mitigate liquidity risk by managing cash generated
by its operations closely.

The maturity of the group’s contractual undiscounted financial liabilities is set out as below. As these

contractual amounts are not discounted and represent future cash flows, they will not all agree to other
notes shown in these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended
31 January 2023 (continued)

21. Financial risk management (continued)

{a) Liquidity risk {continued)

Less than 1to 2 2to5 S5t025 Total
1 year years years years
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
31 January 2023
Trade and other payables 83,810 49 2,076 67 86,002
Lease liabilities 7,250 5,218 9,225 34 21,727
Total 91,060 5,267 11,301 101 107,729
31 January 2022
Trade and other payables 73,618 - 1.479 1,267 76,364
Lease liabilities 5,509 4,809 11,906 2,537 24,761
Total 79,127 4,809 13,385 3,804 101,125

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables. The group has
external debtors however given the cash-based nature of the business, trade receivables are not
significant. Cash deposits are mainly held with Wells Fargo Bank, NA who has an ‘A+’ class credit rating
and HSBC UK Bank plc who has an ‘A-1' class credit rating.

(c) Interest rate risk

The group has both interest bearing assets and interest bearing liabilities. Interest bearing assets include
cash balances which earn interest. The group’s main interest rate risk comes from borrowings which are
charged at a floating interest rate. The majority of the group’s financial liabilities are either non-interest
bearing or liable to interest at a fixed rate.

Fixed rate  Floating rate  Non-interest Total
bearing
£000 £000 £000 £000
31 January 2023
Trade and other payables - - 85,412 85,412
31 January 2022
Trade and other payables - 3,262 72,160 75,422

(d) Foreign exchange risk

The group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from varicus currency
exposures, primarily with respect to movements between Sterling, US Dollars, Euros, Australian Dollars,
Hong Kong Dollars and Japanese Yen. The group manages its exposure to movements in foreign
exchange by matching payments with income in the same currency where possible. The asset-based
lending facility is also denominated in each of these currencies. The group does not make use of forward
foreign exchange contracts and therefore at year end do not have any outstanding forward foreign
exchange contracts (31 January 2022: £Nil).
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31 January 2023 (continued)
21. Financial risk management (continued)

{d) Foreign exchange risk (continued)

For the year ended 31 January 2023, a movement of +/-5% in the exchange rates for the above named
currencies would have increased/decreased the loss before tax by £4.8 million.

The group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting pericd, expressed in local
currency units, was as follows:

usD EUR JPY HKD AUD
$'000 €000 ¥'000 HKD’'000 AUD'000
31 January 2023
Trade and other receivables 6,637 4,859 59,636 3,036 915
Cash and cash equivalents 3,406 667 72,099 3,520 662
Trade and other payables {5,701) {18,588) (3,466) {1,116) (545)
31 January 2022
Trade and other receivables 1,124 623 - 250 -
Cash and cash equivalents 2,739 6,034 98,680 10,880 2,242
Trade and other payables (7,747) (12,657) (6,398) (327) {801)

The aggregate het foreign exchange losses recognised in the income statement were:

Year ended Year ended

31 January 31 January

2023 2022

£000 £000

Net foreign exchange loss included in cost of sales (2,176) (189)

(e) Capital management

The group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going
concern, so that they can provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the group might issue new shares, refinance existing debt or take on new debt. The group
manages capital through the use of long term and short term debt as appropriate.

The group’s capital is summarised as follows:

Restated*

31 January 31 January

2023 2022

£000 £000

Net debt (3,404) 18,671
Total equity 62,495 53,345

*The comparative figures have been restated, see note 27 for further details.

As at 31 January 2023, the group’s net debt was in an overall asset position, this is due to the overali
debit position on the asset-based lending facility, see note 16 for further details.
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31 January 2023 (continued)

21. Financial risk management (continued)

Net debt
Mnvements in the group's nat deht position are shown as follows:
Subtotal —
Asset- liabilities Cash and
based Leases from cash Total
lending financing equivalents
activities
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 February 2021 33,830 27,087 60,917 (6,564) 54,353
Cash flows (30,568) (7,414} (37,982) 750 {37,232)
Capitalised interest - 1,484 1,484 - 1,484
Foreign exchange
movement j - } 65 66
At 31 January 2022 3,262 21,157 24,419 {5,748) 18,671
At 1 February 2022 3,262 21,157 24,419 (5,748) 18,671
Cash flows (3,262) (7,625) {10,887} (17,223} (28,110)
Capitalised interest - 1,397 1,397 - 1,397
Foreign exchange
move?nent ° ) B ) (168) (168)
Disposals/additions - 4,806 4,806 - 4,806
At 31 January 2023 - 19,735 19,735 {23,139) (3,404)

22. Related party transactions
There were no related party transactions during the year (year ended 31 January 2022; none}

The company has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 101 to disclose transactions with wholly
owned subsidiaries.

23. Commitments, guarantees, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

As at 31 January 2023, the group had issued bank guarantees up to the value of £3.2 million (31 January
2022: £0.8 million) to third parties.

Since December 2021 the group has successfully been submitting claims to recover import duty incurred
oh goods sold into the USA and subsequently returned by customers. As at 31 January 2023, there were
potential additional claims, relating to returns made prior to this date, that are not recognised in these
financial statements because the inflow of economic resources from the claims was not virtually certain
as at the balance sheet date. See note 26 for further details of the post balance sheet event relating to
these claims.
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24 Ultimate controlling party

The immediate parent undertaking is MF Bidco Limited, a company incorporated in England and Wales.
The ultimate parent undertaking is MF Topholdings Sarl, a company incorporated in Luxembourg.

MF Topholdings Sarl is also the ultimate controlling party over the company by virtue of his controlling
interest in the shareholding of the company.

These financial statements are the smallest group to consolidate the financial statements of the company.
The parent undertaking of the largest group to consolidate these financial statements is MF Topco
Limited. Copies of the MF Topco Limited consolidated financial statements can be obtained from Level 7,
The Shard, 32 Londen Bridge Street, London, SE1 85G.

25. Subsidiaries and related undertakings

Name Address of registered office Nature of Direct
business holdings

. 251 Little Falls Drive, Wilmington, New Luxury clothing 100% ordinary
Matchesfashion Inc. Castle County, Delaware 19808 retailer shares
Matchesfashion.com 13/F East Town Building, 41 Lockhart Custotmer 100% ordinary
Hong Kong Limited Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong service shares

. ; Non-trading 100% ordinary
Matchesfashion GmbH Schwanthalerstrasse 73, 80336 Munich company shares

. Hoogoorddreff 15, Amsterdam, 1101 Luxury clething 100% ordinary
Matchesfashion B.V. BA, Netherlands retailer shares

All the above subsidiaries are included in the consolidation.

26. Post balance sheet events

On 13 June 2023 the terms of the Borrowings were amended as follows:

» The maturity of the Borrowings was extended from 14 October 2024 to 13 April 2026;

» The cash interest due on 31 Qctober 2023 and 30 Aprit 2024 have the option (at the election of
the group) to be converted to PIK interest;

» For the remaining bi-annual interest periods after 30 April 2024, the group has the option to
convert 50% of the cash interest to PIK interest;

* Where the group elects to convert cash interest to PIK interest, the applicable interest rate on the
Borrowings will increase by either 0.5% (if 50% or less of the cash interest is converted) or 1% (if
more than 50% of cash interest is converted) per annum. This additional interest is also permitted
to be treated as PIK at the opticn of the group; and

+ The Covenant was removed from all quarters remaining under the term of the Borrowings
(starting from the Covenant to be tested as at 31 January 2023).

At the same time, the wider group issued loan notes to its investors totalling £20 million, for cash
consideration,

Post year end, in July 2023, a claim for $15.2 million was submitted to US Customs in relation to duty

drawback claims for returns made prior to 31 January 2023. As per note 24 these claims have been
disclosed as a contingent asset as at 31 January 2023.
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27. Prior year restatement

Inventory

During the year, the group identified a historical discrepancy between the stock value in the warehouse
management system (WMS) as compared to the general ledger system. This identification was prompted
by the automation of part of this reconcitiation which had previously been manually compileted.
Importantly this was not related to the number of underlying units of stock or problems with the WMS, but
instead was due predominantly to valuation differences between the two systems. The largest difference
was driven by differing foreign exchange rates being used to recognise a receipt into stock in the WMS
compared to the related invoice in the general ledger.

This has resulted in a decrease in inventery of £2.9 million as at 31 January 2022 (£1.7 million as at 1
February 2021) and an increase in cost of sales of £1.2 million for the year then ended (year ended 31
January 2021: £1.7 million). The overall tax charge was not impacted but the gross value of carried
forward losses increased by £0.6 million as at 31 January 2022 {(£0.2 million as at 1 February 2021).
There was no impact on the overall cash flow statement in any financial year apart from the classification
between loss for the period and movement in inventory.

Contingent liability

In the prior year, the group disclosed contingent liabilities in relation to deferred duty as at 31 January
2022 of £1.7 million (31 January 2021: £0.8 million). A reassessment in the year ended 31 January 2023
has concluded that this duty does not meet the definition of a contingent liability and therefore the
disclosure has been removed.

28. Cash flows from operating activities

Restated”

Year ended Year ended

31 January 31 January

2023 2022

Note £000 £000

Loss before income tax (70,637) (40,008)
Depreciation 9,10 8,640 10,850
Amortisation " 160 337
Loss on disposal of tangible and right-of-use assets 17 -
Finance costs 7 3,425 2,632
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 9,496 (9,989)
Increase in trade payables 11,181 21,249
Increase in inventories (11,332) (3,833)
Cash outflow from operating activities (49,050) (18,860}

*The comparative figures have been restated, see note 27 for further details.
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